
Joplin Area Chamber of Commerce 

Board of Directors Meeting and 

Zoom Conference Call 

June 27, 2022 
 

Minutes 
 

Attended/Zoom: Jordan Bolinger, Todd Chenault, Kim Cox, Jeremy Drinkwitz, Alex Gandy, Chad Greer, Lori 

Haun, Dr. Ken Heiles, Dr. Brad Hodson, Jerrod Hogan, Mayor Doug Lawson, Betsy Kissel, Melodee Colbert-

Kean, Katrina Richards, Dr. Kerry Sachetta, Melissa Smith, Matt Stewart, Dustin Storm 

 

Absent: John Bartosh, Mattie Crossland, Jim Dalrymple, Nick Edwards, Chad Evans, Carlos Haley, Howie 

Nunnelly, Bill Reiboldt, Dr. Dean Van Galen, Stormy Worden 

 

Staff: Tony Robyn, Erin Slifka, Tonya Sprenkle 

 

Guests: Mike Siebert, Citizen Committee for the Public Safety Tax 

Proposition Public Safety Tax discussion presented by Mike Siebert. Mike gave an overall summary and 

asked the board to financially help so they can raise enough funds for Businesses for a Better Joplin (BBJ) to 

start promoting and educating the community on why this is so critical for Joplin. This issue will be on the 

August ballot.  

 

I. Betsy Kissel, Call to Order 

A. Kim Cox moved to approve the consent agenda as presented and seconded by Melodee Colbert-Kean. 

Motion passed.  

 

II. Approval of June Minutes   

A. Dustin Storm moved to approve the May minutes and seconded by Jordan Bolinger. Motion passed.  

B. May financials presented by Tonya. May financials were in your Board packet; please see them for the 

details. Matt Stewart moved to approve the May financials and seconded by Todd Chenault. Motion passed. 

 

III. Ex-Officio Reports. 

A. City of Joplin presented by Mayor Doug Lawson. Mayor Lawson stated that our first responders need 

to be paid well.  

B. County Commission. 

1. Jasper County, not present. 

2. Newton County, not present. 

C. Education 

1. Joplin R8 presented by Dr. Kerry Sachetta. Dr. Sachetta stated they had a retirement farewell 

for Dr. Moss last week. Dover Hill is moving along and will hopefully be complete by early December. The 

press box is almost complete, and Joplin Schools will finish summer school this week.  

2. Higher Education 

a. Crowder College presented by Melissa Smith. Melissa stated they had three of their six 

upward grants renewed to a total of $4.4 million and will find out the status of the other three grants in 

August. Crowder just signed an apprenticeship agreement with Cooper Greer out of McDonald County. 

Crowder had four All-Americans, three baseball players and one soccer player. They were selected by the 

NCAA. This is the most Crowder has had in one year. Melissa announced that Crowder has 595 students on 

the Dean’s list. Melissa stated they are receiving requests from businesses for Spanish classes. These are 

available both online and in person. Melissa added that she is excited that the Surgical Tech Program starting 

at the ATTC will come online in the fall and is already half full. Melissa announced they secured a Machining 

Instructor. The machining class will be starting and will be a one-semester certificate.  



b. KCU Joplin presented by Dr. Ken Heiles. Dr. Heiles stated the Dental School is in the process of 

accepting applications for students with over 700 applications so far. They are scheduled to start their first 

class in July 2023. The completion date is scheduled for April 2023. The medical school just graduated their 

second class on the 5th with 156 graduates and 99% placement. In two weeks, KCU will start their next 

orientation with 162 students coming in. 

c. MSSU presented by Dr. Brad Hodson and Dr. Dean Van Galen. Dr. Hodson handed his report 

out. Lisa will email it after the meeting.   

d. OCC, not present. 

3. YPN presented by Alex Gandy. Alex showed a PowerPoint. Lisa will email it after the meeting.   

 

 

IV. New Business  

A. Heartland Forward presented by Tony Robyn. Tony stated that they have six applications in. Tony is 

working behind the scenes. The first kickoff meeting was held with approximately120 individuals on the call, 

with 10 of them being from the Joplin region. They visited about how they felt being part of the group and 

what their project ideas are.  

B. Reaccreditation underway presented by Tonya Sprenkle. Tonya stated this is running slowly. Part of 

the reason is the election campaign. Lisa sent out two sets of bylaws. One is the redline version the other is 

the clean version. This will then go to the Governance Committee and then to the Board for final approval in 

the August meeting. 

C. Proposition Public Safety. Betsy encouraged the board to send in donations in support of this.  

D. Roy Blunt’s “thank you” reception discussion presented by Tony Robyn. This will be August 5, 12:00 – 

1:00 pm at the End Zone at MSSU.  

E. Legislative Impact Opportunity; August 19, 10:00 am -2:00 pm in Columbia. Please let Tonya know if 

you would like to attend. Speaker is Ted Abernathy and Bill White and Lane Roberts will attend. Lunch will 

be provided by the Missouri Federation. 

 

VI.   Adjourn to Executive Session  

 

Submitted by Tonya Sprenkle, Vice President 

Typed by Lisa Kelly 

               

































Incubator Activity & Programming, July 2022 

Doug Hunt, Director of Entrepreneurship  

 

Joseph Newman Innovation Center (NIC):  

• Joplin Schools’ Superintendent Kerry Sachetta, EdD, and the admin team will hold their staff retreat at the 

NIC in Suite 201 on July 28. 

• The coworking space has a total of four hot desk members.  

• Another AC unit is being scheduled to have a compressor replaced. 

• New exterior lighting has been ordered. We are waiting on the vendor.  

• Door locks on all restrooms have been upgraded with occupied indicators.   

 

Advanced Training & Technology Center (ATTC):  

• The ATTC has one private office space available as of 7/19/22 

• Another contractor is providing a quote to enclose the top of the exterior elevator lift.  

• The handicap ramp at the west entrance is to be repaired with handicap signs installed at a later unknown 

date. 

• The rooftop AC unit serving the kitchen is beyond repair. We are reviewing options for a 10-ton AC unit.  

• Compressors are being replaced in the AC units serving the welding and manufacturing classrooms.  

 

Programming: 

• 1 Million Cups (1MC) continues with an average of 25 attendees.   

• Chamber Academy has 204 members with continued growth.  

• The July e-Commerce Meetup was hosted by the Joplin Chamber and the Neosho Area Chamber of 

Commerce with a presentation by Mark Carter regarding online payments.  

• 2022 Joplin Regional Innovation & Technology Summit is on track. To date, we have 21 speaker 

applications. The next planning meeting is Tuesday, August 2 at 9:30 am at the Chamber.  

 
Networking Events 
Special Events 

• Hot Links is September 30. There is still time to get a team in if you are interested. 

• JACC Morning Brew is August 5 at Forvis. 

• The Chamber and MOKAN are co-hosting an appreciation reception for Senator Blunt on August 5 at 
noon at MSSU North End Zone. Select invitations are being emailed and are open to the JACC Board. 

• Business After Hours is August 16 at Frank Fletcher Ford. 

• JACC will have a booth at the MSSU Community Day on August 24 

• Business EXPO is January 24 and 25 at Downstream, and registration is open to all members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Membership Summary Report 
June 22, 2022 – July 20, 2022 

 
Year to date    
Membership Previous (April 1, 2022)  805   
Joined (New)      33   
Dropped      23   
Total membership     815 (net 10)  
 
New Members June 22, 2022 – July 20, 2022 
Eagle Eye Printing 
New York Life 
Twenty|20 
 
Dropped Members June 22, 2022 – July 20, 2022 
American Freight 
GFI Digital 
It's Bugs Or Us 
Specialty Foods Distribution, Inc. 
JJ Spurlin 
 
Livability Workgroups, new enrollees, and actions month-to-date: 
Chamber Gives Back: Jessica Carr and Dana Pim, Erin (Chamber Staff Liaison) 
2022-2023 

• April | Community Garden Crosslines, 8 volunteers, 12.25 hours  

• April | Bright Futures Snack Packs, 2 volunteers, 3.25 hours 

• May | Crosslines, 10 volunteers, 19.5 hours 

• May | Paint the Parks Trial Run, 6 volunteers, 8 hours 

• May | Paint the Parks, 19 volunteers, 50 hours 

• May | Bright Futures, 8 volunteers, 7 hours 

• June | Wildcat Glades, 3 volunteers, 5.5 hours 
July | Elk River Cleanup, 11 volunteers, 73 hours 

• YTD 183.75 hours / Goal 300 Hours (increased 25 hours from 2021-2022) 
 
Upcoming Volunteer Opportunities: 

• Children’s Haven Back to School Event | August 4 | Sign Up Here 

• Downtown Joplin Cleanup | August 11 | Sign Up Here 

• Chamber Gives back is grateful to Liberty for continuing to sponsor the work group's efforts beginning 
April 2022 through March 2023. With the support of Liberty, this will allow the group to hold the annual 
river clean-up and purchase supplies for volunteer activities around the community.  

 

Healthy Joplin: Michael Sanders and Kayla Carter, Erin (Chamber Staff Liaison) 

• Healthy Kids: There are grants available that Healthy Kids would like to look at applying for once they 
have specific needs, they would also like to start a “student group” to help identify needs and request 
grant funds. They have about 7-10 initiatives they are working on but would like to choose 3 to tackle this 
coming fall. They are aware of the growing emotional health crisis and want to be able to make an impact 
in that area, whatever capacity that may be. They are wanting to be sure that individuals are educated and 
that resources are available. They are interested in helping graduating seniors find their purpose 
“pathways to purpose,” and are also looking at adding healthy options to concession stands this fall. 
Soaring Heights will have a walking group this fall and a student garden will be started at the Dover Hill 
school. 
 

• Worksite workgroup: Awards will be going out soon for the businesses that applied for the worksite 
wellness competition. They are working on “deskercise” calendars and hoping to have them available for 
purchase soon.   
 



• Walking Groups: We have a new group signed up (Downstream Casino) and have around 150 
people registered to walk. The first round of assessments will be going out soon to all walking 
members.    
 

Chairs are tasked with educating, organizing, and deploying the business community into collaborative initiatives 
to permanently improve health and wellness within our business community and the Joplin community at large. 
Seventeen workgroup members, a re-occurring meeting is the third Wednesday of the month, 11:30 am.  

 

Trails and Connectivity: Luke Gibson and Antony Monteleone - Erin, Chamber Staff Liaison 

• The workgroup will now be meeting on the 4th Wednesday of the month at 4 pm.  

• Short/medium: A google map has been created to all the area trail entry points the group will continue to 
add to the map as the area trails expand. 
https://www.google.com/maps/d/u/0/viewer?mid=1vnLR8L3QZ2lehvtN6a9qFZBFipzmthVU&ll=37.034352
242982564%2C-94.43806000000001&z=11  

• Long-term: Connect Frisco Trail to the Ruby Jack 

• On-going efforts: Be on-call to reach out to elected officials when funding opportunities come up.  

• Create a video series to educate and advocate for transit solutions. 

• Mission: Bike Joplin promotes and supports people on bikes in the Joplin area through events, advocacy, 
and community building. Bike Joplin, Inc. is a non-profit staffed by volunteers from the JACC Trails & 
Connectivity Workgroup, Downtown Joplin Alliance, and local bike advocates. 

 
Equity, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI): Doug, Chamber Liaison 

• The EDI mailing list is being updated with more current and active members. Courageous Conversation 
public events are now being planned for the rest of 2022.   

Professional Development: Alex Gandy, Doug Chamber Liaison 

• The Professional Development workgroup continues to grow and has an active schedule of speed 
networking events and Ed Talks, and they are expanding the mentorship program.  

 
Upcoming Events: 

• EdTalk | Inspiring Your Creativity | July 28 
 

Increase brand awareness and demand for Joplin: Erin and Alyssa 

• The Choose Joplin App is at 500 downloads. Events continue to be the #1 menu item clicked What is 
unique about the events tab integrates with existing community calendars and the appriver team to pull 
events into the calendar. Krackin Cajun Seafood leads in app clicks and website clicks. Restaurants and 
events lead the way in category clicks. 

• A movers guide is being developed for individuals to download from the Choose Joplin website after we 
collect the reason for their interest in this guide. The targeted completion is at the end of August.    

 

https://www.google.com/maps/d/u/0/viewer?mid=1vnLR8L3QZ2lehvtN6a9qFZBFipzmthVU&ll=37.034352242982564%2C-94.43806000000001&z=11
https://www.google.com/maps/d/u/0/viewer?mid=1vnLR8L3QZ2lehvtN6a9qFZBFipzmthVU&ll=37.034352242982564%2C-94.43806000000001&z=11


President’s Report – Travis Stephens 
 
 
Capacity Building 

• Conducted get-to-know-you meetings with each member of the team where I learned more 
about each staff member’s respective roles and responsibilities 

• Implemented slightly new structure for weekly staff meetings 

• Toured the Newman Innovation Center and the Advanced Training & Technology Center 

• During July I completed a 12-week Dale Carnegie Human Relations course 

• Dan Chiodo Leadership Coaching 
o Participated in 1 team session 
o Participated in weekly individual sessions 
o Beginning in August: 

▪ We are discontinuing the team sessions 
▪ Several team members have elected to discontinue individual sessions 
▪ Erin, Alyssa and Amy will continue one session per month 
▪ I will continue with two sessions per month for a while longer as part of my 

onboarding 
▪ All other staff will be discontinuing or have already done so 

• I will be attending the Association of Chamber of Commerce Executives (ACCE) annual 
convention during the final week of July in Indianapolis 

 
 
Collaboration/Partnership Building 

▪ Attended first Joplin city council meeting of July and was introduced to the city council 
▪ Meetings with city council members Phil Stinnett & Gary Shaw (separate meetings) 
▪ Meetings with former Presidents Toby Teeter & Rob O’Brian (separate meetings) 
▪ Met with Dr. Marc Han of KCU Med School and toured the campus 
▪ Submitted letter to the editor in the Joplin Globe regarding Police and Fire Proposal 

 
 
Community Engagements 

▪ 14 get-to-know-you meetings with Chamber BOD members so far 
▪ Engaged with members during July Morning Brew and Business After Hours 
▪ Participated in JOMO Jubilee familiarity bus tour with KCU Medical students 
▪ Visited with member Jefferson’s restaurant 

 
 
Economic Development 

▪ Met with CEO of the Missouri Partnership, Subash Alias 
▪ Submitted 3 RFI’s through Missouri Partnership 
▪ Posted position for MOKAN Director via Linked, Indeed and various professional contacts 
▪ Spent significant time with Tony Robyn debriefing and downloading all things Economic 

Development in Joplin and the MOKAN region 
▪ Conducted windshield tour with Tony of all major employers and local industrial sites 
▪ Participated in tour of Wildwood Ranch courtesy of owner/developer Jimmer Pinjuv 



▪ Attended first Joplin Industrial Development Authority (JIDA) meeting and where we agreed to 
sell an 11 acre parcel at the Crossroads Industrial Park to Foodliner to build a truck washing 
station 

▪ Had meeting with all regional economic development professionals/partners 
▪ Had meeting with Luke Gibson of The Glenn Group who is the broker for several area 

commercial/industrial properties of interest 
 



July 2022 
Economic Development Highlights 

  JACC & MOKAN 
 

 

Business & Industry Takeaways: 

• Joplin’s top growing industries in 2022 are Manufacturing, Construction, 

Professional/Technical Services and Healthcare. 

• In-demand skills for 2022 include merchandising, nursing and warehousing. 

• 95.7% of Joplin businesses employ 49 or fewer employees. 

 

2.8% Joplin Metro Unemployment Rate  
Joplin is nearing a record unemployment rate low of 2.7%, set in 2018. 
Missouri Unemployment 3.1% (considered full employment)  

 
#1  The Joplin metro has the highest job growth of Missouri’s top eight metros, with a 2.8% 
increase since February 2020. (US Census Data) 

 
#1 Missouri holds the top spot for Cost of Doing Business, according to CNBC’s America’s 
Top States of Business of 2022 

 
  #2    Joplin ranked for most minority-owned businesses by city size (smartestdollar.com) 
 
MARKETING AND PROMOTIONS 
 

• Rail Freight Analysis Request for Qualifications posting on hold until City of Joplin fills 
planner position. The intent is to quantify commodities in and out of the region and identify 
opportunities and locations for distribution investments like warehousing and transload. 

• Foreign Direct Investment International trade magazine article and ad ran July 2022. The 
next 2-page article and ad spread will run in late September.  The MOKAN Region will be 
featured on the cover of the Winter issue. 

• Missouri industrial mega-sites (100 ac+) analysis underway. Our region has a few. 

• Completed drone aerial footage for Neosho’s Ozark Terminal industrial property to build promo.  

• Quarterly Around the Region digital newsletter sent in late June 

• Angel Investment Fund has been created with the initial seed contribution of $90,000 from the 
Joplin Capital Corporation. MOKAN board fund oversight committee created. 

 
WORKFORCE and TRAINING 
 

• Initiating a regional employer workforce development study; gathering proposals now. 

• Working with MSSU to explore the viability of data analytics master’s program interest 
among regional employers 

• Hosted approximately 200 KCU medical students in July for JOMO Jubilee in which the 
students were given a windshield and walking tour of points of interest in Joplin to 
promote livability and create a talent pipeline for the healthcare industry 

• Working with Crowder College to promote the new CNC Machining program to regional 
manufacturers 

• Registration is open for AME (Advanced Manufacturing Expo) in which hundreds of area 
high school students are invited to learn more about the products made right here and the 
technology used to create them. 

https://lnkd.in/dmkWbMqt


BUSINESS ATTRACTION AND RETENTION 
 

JIDA & Industrial Parks 

• The Joplin Industrial Authority closed this month on 30-acre for the new Road Ranger Travel Plaza 
Another 80 acres are still pending. 

• JIDA continues investigating an acquisition of large properties as a phase two 

industrial/commercial park buildout, accommodating future growth. Working with 

the City of Joplin on area infrastructure to accommodate growth. Major industries 

are looking for large tracks, 100 ac, and recently as high as 700 ac. 

• Wildwood Industrial Park promotions continue with BNSF rail certification and 

32
nd Street improvements are improving position, but 20th Street continues to be an impediment. 

 
PROJECT UPDATES 
MOKAN continues to see a need for major requested existing manufacturing/warehousing facilities and 
large sites.  There have been 7 projects in the past month in which we did not have an appropriate 
building or site to submit for consideration. 
 
Attraction Projects 

• New – Project Connect 2 – Mega site project for an automotive manufacturing facility 
• New – Project Beige – Industrial Manufacturing equipment production 
• New – Project Gateway 2 – Mega site project for heavy industry manufacturer. Online site 

visit complete. On-site visit to be scheduled. 
• New – Project Park Place – Major brand suburban hotel chain holds local property and 

looking at new construction.  
• Project Firebird – Food and Beverage manufacturer looking for food-grade real estate 
• Project Trinity – Real estate request for advanced manufacturing 
• Project Baker’s Dozen – Manufacturing operation only looking at SWMO 
• Project Spoonman – Large Food Manufacturer looking for a site  
• Project Paper Mache – Local Manufacturer is building a 150,000 sq ft warehouse 

• Project Treasure Chest – Data mining center site just purchased 20 ac at Wildwood 
• Project Spaghetti – International site selector team has visited Joplin twice this spring, 

looking at a 30,000 sq ft warehousing and light manufacturing location. The lack of adequate 
buildings has them looking regionally again for 50,000-60,000 sq ft.   

• Several other projects in the pipeline in various stages of inquiry and qualification 
 

Expansion Projects 

• New -- Project Bookworm – Local technology company continues to expand high-quality 
positions and looking for an additional building acquisition for expansion. 

• New – Project Heat (retention) – Local heat transfer equipment company expanded in 2020 
and is adding more square footage and employees again in 2022 

• Project Crayon – Local manufacturer seeking 100,000 sq ft expansion for production and 
warehousing to support the EV bus vehicle industry. 

• Project Walkie Talkie – Local manufacturer seeking 100,000 sq ft expansion to support 
the handheld communication industry. Working on state training grants now. 

• Project Locomotion– Local manufacturing expansion and relocation discovery are underway. 

• Project Cannon (relocation) – large regional production and retail facility interested in 
consolidating to bigger Joplin market holding re: inflation. 

• Project Starburst (retention) -- added 90 new production positions in 2021 and an expansion 
($10 million); Phase II expands major warehousing and land sale pending. 

• Project Popeye – Technology company corporate office construction is well underway at 
Crossroads.  


